ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 21, 2005
8:10 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative JimElkins
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
COMM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 12
Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the repeal of the budget reserve fund.

- MOVED CSHJR 12(W&M OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 86

"An Act establishing in the office of the onbudsman a state
executive branch enpl oyee fraud, waste, and abuse report hotline
program "

- MOVED CSHB86( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 34

"An Act relating to the expungenent of records relating to
conviction set asides granted after suspended inposition of
sent ence. "

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 146

"An Act relating to an extension for review and approval of
revisions to the Al aska coastal managenment program providing
for an effective date by anending the effective date of sec. 45,
ch. 24, SLA 2003; and providing for an effective date."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 21, 2005



CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 141(FIN)

"An Act relating to the teachers' and public enployees’
retirement systens and creating defined contribution and health
rei nbursenent plans for nenbers of the teachers' retirenent
system and the public enpl oyees' retirenent system who are first
hired after July 1, 2005; relating to university retirenent
prograns; establishing the Al aska Retirenent Managenent Board to
replace the Alaska State Pension Investnent Board, the Al aska
Teachers' Retirenment Board, and the Public Enpl oyees' Retirenent
Board; adding appeals of the decisions of the admnistrator of
the teachers' and public enployees' retirenent systenms to the
jurisdiction of the office of adm nistrative hearings; providing
for nonvested nenbers of the teachers' retirenment system defined
benefit plans to transfer into the teachers' retirenent system
defined contribution plan and for nonvested nenbers of the
public enployees' retirenent system defined benefit plans to
transfer into the public enployees' retirenment system defined
contribution plan; providing for political subdivisions and
public organizations to request to participate in the public
enpl oyees' defined contribution retirenent plan; and providing
for an effective date."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 238

"An Act relating to contribution rates for enployers and nenbers
in the defined benefit plans of the teachers' retirenment system
and the public enployees' retirement system and to the ad-hoc
post-retirenment pension adjustnent in the teachers' retirenent
system requiring insurance plans provided to nenbers of the
teachers' retirenment system the judicial retirement system the
public enployees' retirement system and the forner elected
public officials retirenment system to provide a list of
preferred drugs; relating to defined contribution plans for
menbers of the teachers' retirenent system and the public
enpl oyees' retirement system and providing for an effective
date."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 12

SHORT TI TLE. CONST. AM BUDGET RESERVE FUND REPEAL
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HARRI S

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 21, 2005



02/ 18/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 18/ 05 (H WM STA, JUD, FIN

04/ 01/ 05 (H WM AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 01/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 01/ 05 (H M NUTE( W&M)

04/ 08/ 05 (H WM AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 08/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 08/ 05 (H M NUTE( W&M)

04/ 11/ 05 (H WM AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 11/ 05 (H Moved CSHIR 12(WeM) Qut of Conmittee
04/ 11/ 05 (H M NUTE( V&M

04/ 12/ 05 (H VWM RPT CS(W&M) NT 3DP 1NR

04/ 12/ 05 (H DP: WLSQON, SEATON, WEYHRAUCH;
04/ 12/ 05 (H) NR: SAMUELS

04/ 19/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 19/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 20/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 20/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 21/ 05 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 86

SHORT TITLE. OVBUDSMAN HOTLI NE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MEYER

01/ 19/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 05 (H) STA, JUD

04/ 07/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 07/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 07/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 21/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 34

SHORT TI TLE: EXPUNGEMENT OF SET ASI DES
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04
01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H STA, JUD

03/ 01/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 01/ 05 (H Bi || Post poned

03/ 17/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 17/ 05 (H Heard & Held

03/ 17/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 16/ 05 (H STA AT 9:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 16/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 16/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 21/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 21,

2005



W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN HARRI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIR 12 on behalf of the House
Special Commttee on Ways and Means, sponsor.

M KE PAW.OABKI, St aff

to Representative Kevin Myer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Reviewed the changes nmade to HB 86 in
Version Y on behal f of Representative Meyer, sponsor

LI NDA LORD- JENKI NS, Onbudsman

Anchorage O fice

O fice of the Orbudsman

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
86.

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff

to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Reviewed the changes to HB 34 shown in
Version | on behal f of Representative Wyhrauch, sponsor.

DOUG WOOLI VER, Admi ni strative Attorney

Admi nistrative Staff

Ofice of the Admi nistrative Director

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
34.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:10:16 AM Representatives Lynn,
Ranras, Gardner, and Seaton were present at the call to order.
Representatives Elkins and G uenberg arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HIR 12- CONST. AM BUDGET RESERVE FUND REPEAL

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 21, 2005



8:10: 37 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTION NO 12, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the repeal of
the budget reserve fund. [Before the commttee was CSHIR
12(WeM) . ]

8:10: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN HARRI' S, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HIR 12 on behalf of the House Special Committee on Ways and
Means, sponsor. Before beginning his testinony, Representative
Harris offered his condol ences to Chair Seaton who recently | ost
hi s not her.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S stated that the proposed resolution would

anend the Alaska State Constitution in regard to the
constitutional budget reserve (CBR). He said the CBR has two
provi si ons: a three-quarter vote to access the CBR and the

sweep provision, which sweeps funds that are eligible into the
CBR, unless there is a provision in the budget that reverses
t hose sweeps. He added that the reverse sweep notion [requires]
a three-quarter vote.

8:12: 12 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S said his vision, and that of others, is to

renove the CBR from the constitution and put it into another
constitutionally protected fund, but one that is a capital

generation fund. The earnings of that fund would be used for
capital construction and maintenance repair of state facilities
t hr oughout Al aska. Representative Harris said sone people say

that would take away the mnority's leverage in the three-
quarter vote; however, he stated that it would actually give the

mnority nore |everage, ultimtely. He expl ai ned, "The reason
| say that is: it also takes away the pot of noney that the
|l egislature has ... used over the years to balance the budget

He indicated that taking away the CBR would allow the
state to have a fiscal plan to operate on |like other states do.
He said other states have to balance their budgets, and they
sel dom have to dip into reserve funds. He offered exanpl es.

8:13: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 21, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S said Alaska has so nany unfunded capita
and deferred nmintenance needs throughout the state, including
ai rports, school s, and roads, and the state needs to
consistently put noney into the upgrades of those facilities.
He noted that the resolution would create a [percent of market
value (POW)] to automatically give inflation proofing of the
f und. He added, "If you believe that interest rates wll be
hi gher than 5 percent - determne that 5 percent wll be the
anount . " He said HIR 12 would require the state to "devel op
revenue, long-range,” rather than dipping into the CBR whenever
the state doesn't have the wll to tax its people or use the
earni ngs of the permanent fund.

8: 15: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI' S said concern has been expressed regarding
cash flow problens and whether the state can bal ance its budget

or bring noney forward. He said rather than have another
mechani sm set up, there currently exists in state statute a
statutory budget reserve. The proposed resolution would take
$600 mllion from the CBR, which could be used by the state
governnent to "borrow from and return back.”™ He said he would
like to see bigger fences put around the nobney so that it's nore
difficult for the Ilegislature to get at it, because his

intention is that the noney would be an interest-bearing, cash
avai lability fund for the adm nistration to use.

8:18: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she is thrilled to see this as a
possible first step towards a fiscal plan for the state, which
is long overdue. She asked Representative Harris if the CBR is
currently invested in such a way that the state is earning about
4 percent interest.

8:18: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S said he doesn't know the exact nunbers.
He added, "It's invested nore for liquidity than ... the
permanent fund is, for instance, because ... it's a cash flow

i ssue and you need the cash available.”
8:19: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER remarked, "So, right off the top, this
plan, in changing the structure, would potentially generate a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 21, 2005



hi gher interest rate than we're getting now, so if we just want
to tal k about cold cash that's in the state, we'd be ahead.”

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S answered that's correct.
8:19: 24 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated his presunption that the $600 nmillion, which
would be the cash flow account, would have to be a liquid
i nvest nent .

8:19:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS concurred with Representative Gardner that
HIR 12 is "headed in the right direction,” and he stated his
support for the resolution.

8:20: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRIS admtted that the proposed resolution is
not w thout controversy, and he reiterated that his intent is
not to penalize the mnority. He added that he has been working
with Representative Croft on this issue. He stated that if the
public votes for this resolution, it would put the state in the
position of having to begin adopting a |ong-range fiscal plan to
support its services. He said it will be an uphill battle to
get this issue to the ballot. He talked about other
controversial proposals, such as the use of the permanent fund.
Representative Harris nentioned the price of oil per barrel and
the need to consider that a lower price per barrel would
dimnish Alaska’'s CBR in a matter of years. He said the budget

will only continue to increase. He said, "W're dependent on
one source of revenue, and if that ... volune of revenue does
not continue to increase, we're putting ourselves in a bad
situation.” He enphasized the inportance of addressing the
i Ssue now.

8:23:44 AM

CHAIR SEATON stated his support of HIR 12. He asked

Representative Harris to explain to the conmttee how the
statutory budget reserve fund is used.

8:24: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRIS offered his understanding that although
it's an act, there is nothing currently in it at present.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 21, 2005



8:24: 51 AM
CHAI R SEATON said he would |i ke that infornmation.
8: 26: 05 AM

CHAI R SEATON, after ascertaining that there was no one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

The commttee took an at-ease from 8:26: 27 AMto 8:32:34 AM

8:32:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report CSHIR 12(W&M out of
conmmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR 12(WM was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

The commttee took an at-ease from 8:33:53 AMto 8:52:42 AM

HB 86- OVBUDSMVAN HOTLI NE

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 86, "An Act establishing in the office of the onmbudsman
a state executive branch enpl oyee fraud, waste, and abuse report
hotli ne program”

8:53: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 86, Version 24-LS0237\Y, Craver, 4/20/05. There
bei ng no objection, Version Y was before the conmttee.

8:53:28 AM

M KE PAWOWBKI, Staff to Representative Kevin Myer, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Myer, sponsor,
reviewed the changes made to HB 86 in Version Y. He said those
changes were in response to discussions with the Ofice of the
Orbudsman.

MR. PAW.OWNSKI noted that the first change shows in Section 2, on
page 2, lines [9-11]. The |anguage has been "softened to a
degree" to allow the onbudsman to attenpt to identify the person
calling the hotline, while protecting the anonymty "of the
agency enployee reporting to the hotline.” The onbudsman, he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 21, 2005



said, felt strongly that "there needed to be at |east sone
| eeway to get back to the person.”™ In the sane section, on page
2, lines 12-15, new | anguage was added, which read as foll ows:

(d) The onbudsman shall report to the Legislative
Budget and Audit Commttee every six nonths regarding
the nunber of calls, and the types of fraud, waste
and abuse reported through the hotline program The
onbudsman may not verify the reports or investigate
the information report ed.

8:55: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked, "At that tinme did they make
recommendations on their findings ...?"

8:56: 04 AM

MR.  PAW.OABKI answered, "At this point, the discussion that
we've had is that they do not nake recommendations on their
[findings].” He directed attention to page 1, lines 5-6, which
give the onbudsman the Jleeway to adopt, by regul ation

procedures for receiving and processing. That gives the Ofice
of the Onbudsman the ability to decide how to process a
frivolous conplaint or "sonething that is obviously not
worthwhile to investigate.”

8:57: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what the reason is to require the
extra step of the report.

8:57:43 AM

MR. PAW.OASKI replied, "W view it as a very valuable tool for
the legislature to know what the allegations that are nade
through this enployee hotline are.” In response to a follow up
guestion from Representative G uenberg, M. Paw owski indicated
that the sponsor is open to suggestions as to how often the
report should be required.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his concern that people would be
spending their limted staff tinme doing the reports "rather than
doi ng the cases.™

MR. PAW.OANSKI stated his belief that the fiscal note shows that
a person would be added to "handle the hotline and handle this

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 21, 2005



burden. " In response to a suggestion to do the reports

annual ly, he said, "I think we'd be very anenable to that."
8:58:32 AM
MR, PAWOWSKI directed attention to the third change to the
bill: the new |anguage of Section 3, on page 3, lines 1-5,
whi ch read as foll ows:
*Sec.3. AS 39.25 is anended by adding a new section to
read:
Sec. 39. 25. 920. Depar t nent of
adm nistration to inform enployees of hotline. The
conmm ssioner of admnistration shall inform executive
branch enpl oyees of the public enployee fraud, waste,
and abuse hotline program established wunder AS
24.55. 222.
8:58: 59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked for the —reason for using
"executive branch", and he suggested using "public enployees"
i nst ead.
8:59:41 AM
MR, PAW.OWSKI said, "I believe that's a very good catch.™ He

noved on to the fourth change, which he said is sinply one of
om ssion. He said:

Before we set up an investigatory feature to the
hotl i ne, where the onbudsman's office goes and
investigates these instances of fraud, waste, and

abuse, we'd like to see whether the program is
received or not. And so, what we've done is we've
removed the investigation portion. The reason behind
that being ... that there still is the ability to

investigate through [the Legislative Budget and Audit
Commttee's (BUD s)] ability to direct an audit if

fraud, waste, or abuse is glaring enough that ... the
committee can decide to pursue that. At the sane
time, without having the know edge that this hotline
will be effective or used, we believe it's premature

to start off establishing an entire investigatory
br anch.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 21,

2005



9:00: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated, "This is an issue that ... wll
come up in the bill also, dealing with the Human Rights
Comm ssion. " He said, "I appreciate what you're doing here -

good change."

9:01: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that the purpose of the bill is to
"establish procedures for receiving and processing”, including,
on page 1, line 7, "conducting investigations". She said she is
confused between that and the |anguage on page 2, beginning on
line 14, which read: "The onbudsnman may not verify the reports
or investigate the information reported.” She asked for

clarification.
9:02: 02 AM

MR. PAW.OABKI expl ained, "The new addition of the hotline is a
distinction between the onbudsnman's existing |anguage [in

statute]. He reiterated that the reason for the new | anguage on
page 2, beginning on line 14, is "to see if it works before we
build up the investigatory part.” He concluded, "So, we're

clarifying that they can receive and process, but we do not want
you to investigate here."

9:02:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he liked the elimnation of the
i nvestigation section, because it elimnated the mcro
managenent of the agency. He added, "But | think they should be
able to investigate; | just don't want it set out how they have
to do it." He said he would Ilike to elimnate the
af orenenti oned sentence on page 2, beginning on line 14. He

said, "The agency can certainly do it if it wants to, but that's
up to the agency."

9:03: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN concurred. He said he doesn't think it's
necessary to "conplicate the |lives of people trying to do a good
job."

9:04: 10 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 21, 2005



CHAI R SEATON, after ascertaining that there was not one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

9:04: 45 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Anendnent 1, as foll ows:

Page 2, lines [14-15]:
Del ete "The onbudsman may not verify the reports or
investigate the information reported.™

9:05: 35 AM

MR. PAW.OWSKI, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
Amendrrent 1 woul d be acceptable to the sponsor.

9: 05: 44 AM

CHAI R SEATON indicated that he doesn't think the intent of the
| anguage was to be restrictive, but that could be the result.
He asked if there was any objection to Arendnent 1. There being
none, Anendnment 1 was adopt ed.

9:06:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Conceptual Anmendnent 2, as
fol |l ows:

Page 3, line 3:
Del ete "executive branch”
I nsert "public"

9:07:17 AM

MR. PAW.OWBKI suggested the |anguage be nmade to conform to the
ot her language in the bill.

9:07:51 AM

CHAIR SEATON stated his preference to have a conceptua
anendnent in order to show "the full intent of what we're
doi ng. "

9:08: 09 AM

MR. PAW.OABKI said that's fine.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 21, 2005



9:08:14 AM
CHAI R SEATON reiterated [ Conceptual] Anendnent 2.
9: 09: 00 AM
CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to [Conceptual]
Amrendnent 2. They' re being none, [Conceptual] Anmendnent 2 was
adopt ed.
9:09:16 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Amendment 3, as foll ows:
Page 2, line 13:
Del ete "every six nonths”
I nsert "annual | y"

9:10: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER obj ect ed for di scussi on purposes.

9:10: 52 AM
REPRESENTATIVE ELKINS said he thinks the whole bill was
strengt hened when the conmittee [adopted Amendnent 1]. He said

he likes the "every six nonths", because "the nore often they
report, the hotter the trail is."

9:11:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG w t hdrew Anendnent 3.

9:11:43 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that the six-nonth report is going to the
Legislative Budget and Audit Commttee (BUD), not to the
| egi sl ature. The former neets nore regularly throughout the
year than does the latter.

9:12: 21 AM

CHAI R SEATON reopened public testinony. [ Ohbudsman Li nda Lord-
Jenkins was asked some questions to ascertain whether she had

Version Y before her, but her testinony begins later in these
m nut es. |

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 21, 2005



9:14:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, regarding the reports that will be sent to
BUD, stated his assunption that the reports would be nade
avai lable to anyone in the legislature who would like to review
t hem

9:14: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he doesn't know whether BUD woul d
consi der those reports confidential and, if so, whether |anguage
shoul d be added to all ow access to nmenbers of the |egislature.

9:15: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN clarified that he is not tal king about "the
particulars of each conplaint,” but rather "the nunbers of this,
t he nunbers of that, in broad categories.”

9:15:17 AM

CHAI R SEATON told Representative Lynn that the details are held
confidential by the onbudsman and the report would detail the
nunber of calls and types of fraud waste and abuse that have
been report ed.

9:16: 21 AM

MR. PAWOASKI, in response to a question from Chair Seaton

stated his understanding that it would be the prerogative of the
chair of BUD [whether or not to nmake the reports available to
the | egislature]. He enphasized that it is not the intent of
the sponsor that the records be kept confidential, primarily
because the information could be helpful to l|egislators working
through "the typical budget process that we do work through
every year."

9:17: 00 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked if [BUD] typically reports back to the
| egi slature at the beginning of a new | egislature regarding "the
activity they've taken in our behalf in the interim™

9:17: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS said he doesn't think so.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 21, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d no.
9:17: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN suggested | anguage to allow the |egislature
to request the reports.

9:18: 03 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated that he thinks the entire function of [BUD
is to serve in the legislature's stead, and he thinks all the
records of that conmittee are available to the |egislature.

9:18: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he thinks "any one of wus" could
request the blanket report from the onbudsman, because it's
probably a public docunent.

9:18: 54 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to page 2, [subsection (d), as
anended], which read: "The onbudsnman shall report to the
Legislative Budget and Audit Conmmttee every six nonths
regarding the nunber of calls, and the types of fraud, waste
and abuse reported through the hotline program” He asked the
state onmbudsman if that would be a docunent available to the
public.

9:19:17 AM

LINDA LORD- JENKINS, Onrbudsnman, Ofice of the Orbudsman -
Anchor age, responded, "It could be a report depending on how we
redact specific information fromit."

9:19: 33 AM

CHAI R SEATON indicated that, as the bill reads, there should not
be any information in the report that would need redacting,
because the legislature would not be asking for anything that

woul d be confidential or would identify [any person contacting
the hotline].

9:19:55 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 21, 2005



M5. JENKINS, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
confirmed that she would nake the report available even if she
had to nmake sone redacti ons.

9:20: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the bill would be heard next
in the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee. He asked that M.
Lord-Jenkins and M. Pawlowski work wth John MKay, the
attorney for the Anchorage Daily News, to "determ ne the answer
to that question and, if necessary, come up with sonme |anguage."”
He commtted to offer that [language] in the House Judiciary
Standing Commttee if it is a reasonable sol ution.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that would satisfy him

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that the report be routinely
sent by e-mail to all sitting |egislators.

9:21: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said [the report] is a public docunent,
but he sees negative pitfalls in "making this too big of a
public field." He said the press can take sonmething mnor and
blow it out of proportion, so he advised against making a big
deal that it is public.

9:22:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG said - Representative Gardner's
consideration aside - he wants to ensure that there is an answer
to the question regarding public docunent |aw.

9:23:16 AM

MR. PAW.OWSKI said he agrees with Representative Guenberg that
it isn't explicit in law, and he said it would concern the
sponsor if menbers of [the legislature] didn't have access to
the reports.

9:24:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that Representative Gardner's
suggestion would send the reports directly to the legislators,
not the entire public.

9: 24: 33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 21, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he wunderstands that, but quipped,
"And we all know w thout a shadow of a doubt that our e-mails
are very safe and very sacred.”

9: 24: 48 AM

CHAI R SEATON said getting reports from nunerous agencies is a
standard requirenent. He said the only reason he thinks the
report would be going to [BUD] instead of to the legislature is
if "we're going to be getting reports on an interim basis that
the legislature wouldn't be able to receive."

9: 25: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG suggested [to Representative Gardner
that she <could offer an anendnent to] change the words
"Legi slative Budget and Audit Conmittee" on page 2, lines 12-13,
to "Legislature".

9:26:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said, "It seens to ne that if the report
formally goes to the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmttee they
have a duty to review it." She said she just wants to be able
to see the reports.

9: 26: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndi cated that the |anguage just states
that the report is sent to [BUD; it doesn't nean that anybody
will look at it. He said if Representative Gardner wants the
report to be available to the legislature, he would support an
amendnent to that intent.

9:27: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to adopt Anmendment 4, as foll ows:
Page 2, lines 12-13:
Del ete "Legislative Budget and Audit Conmittee”

I nsert "Il egislature"

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said, "I just think we need to know if
there's thousands of these or a couple dozen.™

9:27:48 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 21, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS objected to Anmendnent 4. He said he
thinks if [BUD] is doing its job, it would be certain to let the
| egislature know if it sees any danger signs, for exanple.

9:28:18 AM
CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Gardner if she still wants the

report to be sent every six nonths, or if she would like to
change it to annually.

9:28: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said it is fine to | eave the |anguage at
"every six nonths" [on page 2, line 13].

9:28: 54 AM

CHAI R SEATON rest ated Anendnent 4.

9:29: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER added, "I envisioned something in the
nature sinply of an e-mail, wth maybe an attached synopsis
[ist.”

9:29: 33 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if Representative Gardner wanted to change
Amendnent 4 to read "shall report electronically to the
| egi sl ature".

9:29:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said it doesn't matter.

9:29: 55 AM

MR. PAW.OASKI recomrended the requirenent to send the report to
the legislature be additional |anguage, rather than replacenent

| anguage. He explained that given the Legislative Budget and
Audit Commttee's specific purview and jurisdiction over the
"l egislative audit division," the reports could have very

significant nmeaning for that commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER wi t hdr ew Amendnent 4.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 21, 2005



9:31: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved [ Conceptual] Amendnent 5, as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 13:
After "every six nonths"
Insert ", and to the |l egislature annually,"”

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS objected to [Conceptual] Amendnent 5. He
said he thinks the commttee nmade sone good anendnents to the
bill already and nowis starting to "gumit up."

9:32:42 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gardner, G uenberg,
Lynn, and Seaton voted in favor of Conceptual Amendnent 5.
Representative Elkins voted against it. Ther ef ore, Concept ual
Amendnent 5 passed by a vote of 4-1.

9:34: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report CSHB 86, Version 24-
LS0237\Y, Craver, 4/20/05, as amended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 86(STA) was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HB 34- EXPUNGEMENT OF SET ASI DES

9:35:47 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 34, "An Act relating to the expungenent of records
relating to conviction set asides granted after suspended
i nposition of sentence.”

9:36: 03 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the committee substitute
(CS) for HB 34, Version 24-1LS0240\1, Luckhaupt, 4/18/05, as a
work draft. There being no objection, Version | was before the
conmittee.

9: 36: 25 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 21, 2005



LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Wyhrauch
sponsor, reviewed the changes to the bill shown in Version I

9:38: 27 AM

MS. SYLVESTER expl ained that one change is the court would not
automatically be issuing expungenents; a person would petition
for one and judges would foll ow concrete guidelines.

9: 39: 38 AM

CHAI R SEATON npved Amendment 1 to Version |, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, Line 7, Follow ng, "expungenent."

DELETE: "The court may issue the order if the person
has proven by a preponderance of the evidence that the
person is not likely to reoffend.”

| NSERT: "No sooner than one year followi ng the date of
the set aside of the suspended inposition of sentence,
and if the person has not been charged with a crine,
the court nmay issue the order of expungenent.”

MS. SYLVESTER revi ewed Amendnent 1.
9:41:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN obj ected to Amendnent 1. He stated that he
has a philosophical problem with any anendnment that would
i ncrease the already broad | anguage of the bill.

9:41: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS told Representative Lynn that he wll
support [Anendnment 1] for one reason: He indicated that people
[wth old crimnal records - for exanple a charge of driving
under the influence (DU ) they may have received a few decades
in the past] are being pulled off state ferries and tug boats,
[ by the Canadi an governnent while in Canadian waters] and being
flowmn hone, leaving the ferries and tugs wthout sufficient
crew. He said, "It takes about a year to get through the
Canadi an governnent to get it cleaned up,"” and [Amendnment 1]
woul d elimnate that [problen.

9:42: 59 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 21, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER reninded her fellow conmttee nenbers
that the crimes being considered are not violent crines, but
rat her m nor offenses, and there would be reason to believe that
the person is not likely to reoffend.

9:43:18 AM

CHAI R SEATON added, "It's only those crines ... [that] went to
court and [for which] there was a suspended inposition of
sentence ...."

9:44: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN renoved his objection and said he probably
woul d not object to any further amendnents in order to speed the
commttee process; however, he nmay object to the bill.

9:45: 31 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked if there was any further objection to
Amendnent 1. There being none, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

9:45: 58 AM

DOUG WOOLI VER, Administrative Attorney, Admnistrative Staff,
Ofice of the Admnistrative Director, Al aska Court System
stated that he has worked extensively with the sponsor's staff
to create a variety of options that are procedurally consistent
with what the court can and cannot do. He said the change
[ mani fested through Anmendnent 1] was recommended by at |east a
coupl e judges who were unconfortable with the |anguage "unlikely
to reoffend in the future".

9:47:. 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, regarding the adopted Anendnent 1,
said he wants it to be clear that the |anguage "no sooner than
one year" will allow a judge in an individual case to say, "I
won't consider an expungenent order sooner than two years from
the date of the inposition of sentence ...."

9:48: 22 AM

MR. WOOLI VER responded that that's how he read that | anguage.

9:48: 31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 21, 2005



CHAI R SEATON asked if "no sooner than" neans that fol ks who had
a suspended inposition sentence in the past could cone to the
court to ask for an expungenent of their set aside.

9:48: 54 AM

MR. WOOLI VER responded, "As | read the current |anguage, it's
not limted to people who recently received a set aside."”

9:49: 35 AM

CHAIR SEATON [noved] Anendnent 2, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 2, Line 10,
DELETE: "arrest, adjudication”

Page 1, Line 14,
DELETE: "arrest, adjudication”

9:50: 17 AM

M5. SYLVESTER said, "The intention is not to do a surgical
stri ke of every record of the court process."

9:50: 46 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that the |anguage to be deleted on line 10
actually read, "arrested" and "adjudged", which is different
t han how t he sponsor's anendnent read.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the first part of Anmendnent 2

shoul d del et e: "previously arrested, been adjudged,” so that
the sentence reads: "Upon entry of such an order, the applicant
shall be deened not to have been convicted, or received a

suspended i nposition of sentence, or a set aside."

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Woliver to conment.
9:52: 55 AM

MR. WOOLIVER said it's not hard to seal or make confidential a
court file; however, "names do show up in countless other places

that are ... all but inpossible to go back and renove." He said
all court proceedings are recorded on a CD ROM There is an
arraignment list for the day which is not searchable by nane,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 21, 2005



but is searchable by date; so, if a person is arraigned, his/her
name wll show up. He explained, "It's very difficult,
bordering on inpossible, to go back later and then try to delete
any reference to you for vyour arraignnent, for your bai
hearing, for your change of plea hearing. You'll just be one
name anongst hundreds on a CD. That's the type of thing we
can't make confidential."

9:53:41 AM

CHAIR SEATON said he thinks the part of the |[|anguage the
committee is addressing inmmediately is regarding whether the
applicant shall be deenmed as not convicted, not regarding record
del eti on.

MR. WOOLI VER responded, "They're rel ated, though."

CHAI R SEATON said what he wants to know is if M. Woliver
recommends that the |anguage read "previously convicted" or "has
not been convicted".

MR. WOOLI VER replied that he does not have a position on that.
9:54: 22 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that Anendnent 2 would be conceptual and
now read as follows:

Page 1, Line 10

Del ete: "previously arrested, been adjudged,"”
CHAIR SEATON, in response to a comment from Representative
Gruenberg, said, "I don't see any objection other than this to
adopting the anendnent.” He announced that [ Conceptual]

Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.
9: 55: 40 AM

CHAI R SEATON noved Anmendnment 3 [previously part of the origina
Amendrment 2 fromthe sponsor], which now read as foll ows:

Page 1, Line 14
Del ete: "arrest, adjudication”

9:57:14 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- April 21, 2005



MR. WOOLIVER remarked that his previous conments were nore
applicable to [what was the second part of Anmendnent 2 and is
now Anendnent 3]. He conti nued:

This deals with the types of records the court can
either seal or make confidential. As | expl ai ned
earlier, there are just sone records that, by the
nature of the way they are gathered, can't be nade
confidential or sealed, and others that are relatively
si npl e. The record of the conviction or files on
those types of things we can easily nake confidential.
Every other reference to the nanes and records
relating to arrest and arraignnent and bail review are
things that are not the types of things you search
anyway on the Internet or any other place, but as a
practical matter they're all but inpossible to delete.

MR. WOCLI VER, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
the aforenentioned is true at l|east for the court system He
said he knows the Departnment of Public Safety has "other
i ssues. "

9:57:49 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to Arendnent 3.
9:58: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected to Amendment 3 for discussion
pur poses. He said he would like to know if Joanna Stewart from
the Departnment of Public Safety would like to comment on
Amendnent 3 [but it was ascertained that she did not].

9:59: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG [wi thdrew his objection to Amendnent
3].

9:59:47 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that, there being no further objection,
Amendnent 3 was adopt ed.

10: 00: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the court system would have
had any problem with the I|anguage "previously arrested, been

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 21, 2005



adj udged," if the commttee had not deleted it in Conceptual
Amendnent 2.

10: 01: 01 AM

MR, WOOLI VER responded, "Actually, that section doesn't really
apply to us, it's just a policy call that you' |l nmake as to what
you will allow this person to report to the world."

10: 01: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to reconsider the commttee's
acti on on Anendment 2.

10: 01: 29 AM

MR. WOOLIVER interjected, "Just reading this again ..., | my
have m sspoken. There may be other reasons - other aspects
about whether soneone has been previously arrested in other
contexts - that I'mnot thinking of right now So, |I'mnot sure
what the inpact of ... <changing that anmendnent would be,
frankly."

10: 01: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG concluded that he would not nmeke a
not i on. [His notion to reconsider the commttee' s adoption of
Amrendnent 2 was treated as w thdrawn. ]

10: 02: 11 AM

CHAIR SEATON told Representative Guenberg he thinks its
inmportant to be specific when allowing people to be deened as
not having been arrested; it should pertain to an individual
crime, not be blanketed for all crines.

10: 02: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks that's an excellent
poi nt . He suggested there should be language in the bill to
reflect that concern.

10: 03: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Conceptual Amendnent 4, as
fol | ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 21, 2005



Page 1, line 11:
Between "set aside" and "."
Insert "for that crinme"

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to Conceptual
Amendnent 4. There being none, Conceptual Anmendnent 4 was
adopt ed. He explained that since the anmendnent is conceptual
it "could be conformed throughout, if there's another place."

10: 03: 49 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to the sponsor's Amendnment 3,
which he said would now be nanmed Anmendnent 5. He noved
Amendnment 5, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Page 2, Line 5,

| NSERT: APPLI CABI LI TY: The amendnent to AS
12.55.085(e) made by sec. 1 of this Act allowing the
sealing of certain records only applies when a
conviction, suspension of inposition of sentence, and
the set aside under AS 12.55.085 have all occurred
after the effective date of this ACT

10: 04: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected. He expl ai ned as fol |l ows:

It was at my request that that second section was

elimnated from the original bill. And the reason
it's been (indisc.). This deals wth the cost
i nvol ved. And the thing is that agencies are

concerned that if we nmake it retroactive, it's going
to be very expensive. W don't, at this point, know
what the additional expense is going to be, and we
don't know ... where the cutoff date should be and how
this should work. And it may vary by agency.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his preference that "the reach
of this bill should be dealt wth in [the House Finance
Comm ttee] after the agencies have worked up their fiscal notes,
and that the House State Affairs Standing Commttee should ask
t he House Finance Committee to address [ Anendnent 5].

10: 06: 33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 21, 2005



CHAI R SEATON proffered that the conmittee's intent is not to ask
the court system or the Departnent of Public Safety to dig
through records of previous acts that were set aside, but to
allow the person who had the set aside to consider that
[ conviction] expunged and be able to honestly answer that they
were not convicted [on a job application, for exanple].

10: 08: 05 AM

MR. WOOLI VER stated that w thout the anmendnent, anyone who has
had a set aside "now nore than a year in the past" can cone
petition the court to have his/her record expunged. Wth the
anendnent, only those who have been <convicted since the
effective date would have that option available to them
Retroactivity would be a public policy call for the legislature
to make, while for the court system and others in crimnal
justice agencies, it would be an issue of how difficult it would
be to go back and expunge records fromthe past.

10: 09: 36 AM

CHAI R SEATON indicated that he read [Anmendnent 5] differently.
He stated, "It doesn't say that expungenent won't be there, it
means that you won't have to go back and change the record.” He
suggested that the bill possibly needs to be in tw sections.
The first would read: "Upon entry of such an order the

applicant shall be deenmed not to have been previously convicted
or received a suspended inposition of sentence, or a set aside

for that crime." The second would have to do with allow ng the
sealing of record. He added, "Or ... nmaybe we should be
requiring the sealing of record." He offered further details.

10: 11: 23 AM

MR. WOOLI VER responded that if that's the goal, he's not sure
[ Amendnment 5] acconplishes it.

10: 11: 37 AM

CHAI R SEATON reiterated that two issues are currently conbined
in one paragraph in Section 1. He said he would like to hold
the bill and get a commttee substitute drawn up wth two
secti ons.

10: 12: 44 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 21, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that the only conmttee that
would really take the tine with HB 34 is the House State Affairs
Standing Committee. He offered to be on a subcommttee to dea
with the issue.

CHAIR SEATON said he would serve on the subcommittee wth
Representati ve G uenberg.

10: 13: 19 AM

CHAIR SEATON stated his wunderstanding for the record that
Amendrent 5 was wit hdr awn.

10: 13: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG [noved] Anendnent 6 J[originally the
sponsor's Amendnent 4], which read as follows [origina
punct uation provided]:

Page 1, Line 13, follow ng "cost of"
DELETE: "sealing the records”
| NSERT: "maki ng the records confidential"”

Page 2, Line 2, followng "electronic records are"
DELETE: "seal ed”

| NSERT:  "confidential . Nothing in this section
affects or prevents the use of an offenders [sic]
prior conviction, including an expunged conviction, in
a later crimnal prosecution.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that there's a great difference
in the court system between making a record confidential and
sealing the record. In the former, the record is stanped
"confidential"; in the latter, the record is place in an
envel ope under seal and can only be opened if a judge issues an
or der. If a person reoffends, he said, the question is whether
the district attorney can |ook at the record, for exanple, when
it would be hel pful to use the fact of the prior conviction. He
offered further details. Under [Version |I], the record would be
seal ed. Amendnent 6 would allow the confidential record to be
used in a subsequent crimnal prosecution.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that there was a typographica
error: The word "of fenders"” should read "of fender's".

10:17: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 21, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d he woul d support Amendnent 6.

10:17: 13 AM

VR. WOOLI VER confirnmed t hat Representati ve G uenberg's
expl anation was accurate. In response to a question from Chair
Seaton, he said deciding whether or not to adopt Amendnent 6
would be a policy call for the commttee to nake. He recapped
Representati ve G uenberg's expl anati on of seal ed ver sus
confidenti al .

10: 18: 09 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he wants to ensure that the court system would
have access for future court action, but "really no one else
does. "

10: 18: 42 AM

MR WOOLI VER confirnmed that's correct.

10: 19: 02 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his recollection that he had objected to
Amendnent 6 and he renoved his objection.

10:19: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nopbved an anendnent to Amendnent 6 to
change "offenders” to "offender’'s".

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to the anmendnent
to Anendnent 6. None was stated and the anmendnent to Anendnent
6 was treated as adopt ed.

10: 19: 43 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to Anendnent 6, as
anended. There being none, Anmendnent 6, as anended, was
adopt ed.

CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 34 was heard and hel d.

10: 20: 50 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- April 21, 2005



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
10: 20: 58 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 21, 2005



